Victorian Heritage Database Report

Dwelling - Aireys/Till-Amook

13 Upper Skene Street, GWST Fieldbook no. 147, 9
Newtown July 1912, p4, Barwon Water.
Location

13 Upper Skene Street NEWTOWN, GREATER GEELONG CITY

Municipality
GREATER GEELONG CITY

Level of significance

Incl in HO area contributory

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO2005

Heritage Listing
Greater Geelong City

Statement of Significance
Last updated on -
Contributory Significance- Newtown West Heritage Area

History/Notes

This dwelling at 13 Upper Skene Street was built in 1904 for Charles Wilks, wheelwright, who lived next door at
‘Meran’, 11 Upper Skene. Wilks first leased the dwelling (which was named "Aireys") to Joseph Howcroft, head
teacher of the Fyansford State School. He lived there until 1908 when Samuel Cousens took over as the



Fyansford State School's headmaster. Cousens then occupied the dwelling until it was sold by Wilks in 1911-12
to Mary Ann Coates. The dwelling was then called "Till-Amook".

Charles Wilks was born at Fyansford in 1859, the son of Joseph and Ann (nee Colbert) Wilks. Joseph Wilks had
a wheelwright business at Fyansford and Charles, together with his older brother, Joseph, followed their father as
wheelwrights and blacksmiths in the family business. Joseph Wilks continued the wheelwright business on the
premature death of his father in

1876. Charles appears to have continued to work in the family business under his brother, Joseph. Other
connections with Fyansford were also maintained with Charles Wilks' son, Bert, attending the Fyansford State
School, walking from their home in Upper Skene Street each day. He was probably accompanied by the
Fyansford School's headmaster.

The asymmetrical, single storey, Late Victorian styled timber dwelling largely reflects its original design when
viewed from the front. This includes the main hipped roof form and the projecting gabled wings at the front and
side linked by a return verandah. There are also early brick chimneys, eaves with paired timber brackets and
panelled, timber framed double hung tripartite windows, timber framed front doorway, decorative timber
bargeboards with timber finials, and possibly the window hood at the front. The timber verandah posts and
balustrades appear to have replaced the original fabric. There are additions at the rear, but the extent of the
original dwelling is discernible. At the front is an introduced capped timber picket fence and gates.
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This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/
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